
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

     May 7, 2013 9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Joe Brannen 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Gary Lewis 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations 
A) Presentation of the Tree City USA Award (20th year) by the Georgia Forestry 

Commission and the City’s Tree Board to the City of Statesboro 
B) Recognition of City Tree Board Members (Henry Clay, Chairman and Wesley 

Parker) and City Staff (Robert Seamans and Rose Butterbaugh) for obtaining 
Arborists Certifications from the International Society of Arboriculture. 

C) Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing National Police Officer Memorial Day set 
for May 15, 2013 

D) Presentation of a Proclamation for Luke Pittaway for his efforts in bringing the GSU 
E-Zone to the Downtown area and improving the relationship between GSU and the 
City of Statesboro. 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 04-12-2013 Council Budget Retreat Minutes 
b) 04-16-2013 Council Minutes 
c) 04-24-2013 Called Council Minutes 

B) Consideration of a Motion to approve a Special Event Permit: 
a) Applicant’s Name:                          Jamie Toms 

Date and Time of Event:                  May 22, 2013, 5-7 p.m. 
Location of Event:                            Belle House 
Type of Event:                                  University of Georgia event for alumni 
Products served:                                Beer and Wine 

C) Notification of alcohol license application: 
a) Licensee:  Amy Mae Lane (Changing Managers) 

DBA:  Parker’s #20 
Location:  1899 Chandler Road 
Type of Alcohol License:  Retail Beer & Wine Packaged 
Type of Business:  Convenience Store – Packaged Beer & Wine 

b) Licensee:  Robert Houstoun Demere III (Changing Managers) 
DBA:  Enmark Stations Inc. #849 
Location:  100 Northside Drive West 
Type of Alcohol License:  Retail Beer & Wine Packaged 
Type of Business:  Convenience Store – Packaged Beer & Wine 
 



 
 

 
 

D) Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2013-12: A Resolution to adopt the 
third amendment to the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for each fund of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia, appropriating the amounts shown in each budget as 
expenditures/expenses, adopting the several items of revenue anticipations, and 
prohibiting expenditures or expenses from exceeding the actual funding appropriated 

E) Consideration of a motion to authorize the Mayor to execute the GMA Lease Pool 
Agreement in the amount of $1,531,775.00 

F) Consideration of a Motion to set a Public Hearing for the FY 2014 Budget for May 
23, 2013 at 4:00 pm 

6. Consideration of a Motion to adopt Resolution 2013-11: A Resolution to accept as a gift 
the conveyance and dedication of certain real property valued at SIXTY SEVEN 
THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($67,800.00) from the heirs and assigns of 
Thomas E. Rushing, Sr. 

 
7. Consideration of a Motion to Enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between the 

City of Statesboro and the Bulloch County Board of Education to allow the City to 
construct and maintain a sidewalk across the northeasterly side of the former Sallie 
Zetterower Elementary School property. 

 
8. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Task Order No. 1 of Professional Services 

Agreement with Ecological Planning Group in the amount of $74,125 to assist the City 
with the development of Comprehensive Storm water Management Program. 
 

9. Consideration of a motion to approve the Police Department to apply for available 2013 
COPS Hiring Program Federal Grant funds 
 

10. Consideration of a Motion to approve the preliminary design and Phase I of the 
architectural construction drawings for the City of Statesboro Fire Station I renovations 
and additions.  
 

11. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Statesboro Watershed Protection Plan that 
presents a strategy for protecting existing water quality within the Statesboro Water 
Pollution Control Plant as required by EPD. 
 

12. Consideration of a Motion to approve the option for the City of Statesboro to purchase 
the property located at 58 East Main Street Suite C and D in the amount of $375,000.00. 
The money is allocated in the 2013 SPLOST. This building is the current GSU City 
Campus. 
 

13. Other Business from City Council 
14. Public Comments (General) 

A) Mr. Bill Thomas request to speak to Council regarding the importance of maintaining 
Public Trust 

 
15. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 

NATIONAL POLICE OFFICER MEMORIAL DAY 

WHEREAS,  the Congress and President of the United States have designated May 15 as Peace 
Officers Memorial Day, and the week in which it falls as Police Week; and 

WHEREAS,  the International Association of Chiefs of Police has declared law enforcement 
officer safety and wellness a top priority, and the IACP's Center for Officer Safety 
and Wellness promotes the importance of individual, agency, family, and 
community safety and wellness awareness; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the members of law enforcement agency of the STATESBORO POLICE 

DEPARTMENT play an essential role in safeguarding the rights and freedoms of 
the citizens of STATESBORO; and 

WHEREAS,  it is important that all citizens know and understand the problems, duties and 
responsibilities of their police department, and that members of our police 
department recognize their duty to serve the people by safeguarding life and 
property, by protecting them against violence or disorder, and by protecting the 
innocent against deception and the weak against oppression or intimidation; and 

WHEREAS,  the police department of the CITY OF STATESBORO has grown to be a 
modern, professional, and community policing law enforcement agency which 
unceasingly provides a vital public service; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, MAYOR JOE R. BRANNEN call upon all citizens of 
STATESBORO and upon all patriotic, civil and educational organizations to observe the week 
of MAY 13 – 17, as Police Week with appropriate ceremonies in which all of our people may 
join in commemorating police officers, past and present, who by their faithful and loyal devotion 
to their responsibilities have rendered a dedicated service to their communities and, in doing so, 
have established for themselves an enviable and enduring reputation for preserving the rights and 
security of all citizens. 

I FURTHER call upon all citizens of STATESBORO to observe MAY 15, as Peace Officers 
Memorial Day to honor those peace officers who, through their courageous deeds, have lost their 
lives or have become disabled in the performance of duty. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOFF, I, Joe R. Brannen, Mayor of the City of Statesboro has hereunto 
set my hand and caused the Seal of the CITY OF STATESBORO to be affixed this 7th DAY of 
MAY in the year of 2013. 

________________________ 
Joe R. Brannen, Mayor 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
CITY COUNCIL BUDGET RETREAT MINUTES 

APRIL 12th, 2013 

 
 
A City Council Budget Retreat was held on April 12th, 2013 at 9:00 am in the City Hall Council 
Chambers at 50 East Main St.  Present was Mayor Joe Brannen, Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt, 
Councilman Phil Boyum and Councilman John Riggs. Also present was  City Manager Frank 
Parker, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, City Engineer Robert Cheshire 
and Director of Community Development Mandi Cody. Councilman Gary Lewis and 
Councilman Travis Chance were absent. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Joe Brannen.   
 
Other Department Heads present were: 
Director of Water/Wastewater Wayne Johnson, Assistant Director Water/Wastewater Van 
Collins, Director of Public Safety Wendell Turner, Gas Superintendent Steve Hotchkiss, Senior 
Assistant City Engineer Jason Boyles, Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant, Director of 
Purchasing Darren Prather, Finance Director Cindy West. 
 
Also present were other City employees as well as GSU students and the news media. 
 
The meeting consisted of the department heads giving an overview of their budget for FY 2014 
which included their CIP Projects as well as goals and priorities, 2013 highlights, budget 
assumptions, rate changes and other proposals by the City Manager. The meeting ended with the 
discussion of proposed recommendations from the Mayor and Council Members.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:45p.m. 
 
There was no action taken at this meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
  CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

April 16, 2013 

A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on April 16, 2013 at 6:00 in the 
Southern Ballroom of the Nessmith Lane Conference Center on the GSU Campus. Present were 
Mayor Joe R. Brannen, Council Members: Will Britt, Phil Boyum, John Riggs, Gary Lewis and 
Travis Chance.  Also present were City Manager Frank Parker, City Clerk Sue Starling, City 
Attorney Alvin Leaphart, City Engineer Robert Cheshire and Director of Community 
Development Mandi Cody. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Joe Brannen. 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was given by Councilman Phil Boyum. 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations: 

A) Kelly Collingsworth request to update Council on the Great American Cleanup 
B) Presentation of the Great American Cleanup proclamation to Kelly Collingsworth 

representing Keep Bulloch Beautiful 
 
Kelly Collingsworth updated Council on the upcoming 13th annual Great American Cleanup that 
is set for April 20th, 2013.  
 
Mayor Brannen presented a proclamation to Kelly Collingsworth representing Keep Bulloch 
Beautiful and Robert Seamans representing the Public Works Department of the City of 
Statesboro. The proclamation was in recognition of the Great American Cleanup. 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 04-02-2013 Council Minutes 
b) 04-02-2013 Executive Session Minutes 

      B) Notification of alcohol license application: 
 Licensee:  Gregory Milo Parker 
DBA:  Parker’s #41 
Location:  24151 Highway 80 East 
Type of Alcohol License:  Retail Beer & Wine Packaged  
Type of Business:  Convenience Store – Packaged Beer & Wine 

C) Consideration of a Motion to approve an Outdoor Event Permit: 
Applicant’s Name:            Jon Starkey 
Date and Time of Event:   May 4, 2013, 7:00 p.m. 
Location of Event:             University Plaza 
Type of Event:                   Outside Gathering with Band and DJ 
Products served:                Beer, Wine, and Liquor 



 
 

D) Consideration of a Motion to approve a Special Event Permit: 
Applicant’s Name:            Larry T Scarboro 
Date and Time of Event:   May 4, 2013, 9:00 p.m. 
Location of Event:             Springhill Suites  
Type of Event:                   5th Annual All White Ball – Big Head Barber/Salon 
Products served:                Beer and Wine 

E) Consideration of a Motion to declare the listed trucks and equipment as surplus and 
be disposed of, as recommended by the Purchasing Department. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve the 
consent agenda in its entirety. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve APPLICATION # SE 13-03-01:  Marcella 
Dickerson-Jones requests a special exception be granted pursuant to the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance to allow the operation of a group home in the R-15 (Single-Family Residential) 
District for property located at 104 South Zetterower Avenue. (Tax Parcel number 
S40000004 000). 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve APPLICATION 
# SE 13-03-01:  Marcella Dickerson-Jones requests a special exception be granted pursuant to 
the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance to allow the operation of a group home in the R-15 (Single-
Family Residential) District for property located at 104 South Zetterower Avenue. (Tax Parcel 
number S40000004 000). Councilman Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt abstained from voting. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve APPLICATION # V 13-03-02:  Maxwell-Reddick & 
Associates, Inc., requests a variance from Article VII Section 703 of the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance regarding density increase in the R-4 (High Density Residential) District for 
property located at 552 East Main Street (Tax Parcel number MS82000033 000). 
 
John Dotson representing Maxwell Reddick spoke in favor of the request. Mayor Pro Tem Will 
Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve APPLICATION # V 13-03-
02:  Maxwell-Reddick & Associates, Inc., requests a variance from Article VII Section 703 of 
the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding density increase in the R-4 (High Density 
Residential) District for property located at 552 East Main Street (Tax Parcel number 
MS82000033 000). Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to purchase a heated asphalt/re-claimer 
trailer from KM International at a bid price of $41,324.00 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to award a contract to 
purchase a heated asphalt/re-claimer trailer from KM International at a bid price of $41,324.00. 
Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 



 
 

 
 
Consideration of a Motion to adopt Resolution 2013-09: Resolution accepting rights of way 
of one (1) street as public street to be owned and maintained by the City of Statesboro.  The 
street to be considered for acceptance is Vaden Dr. located beside the new Nissan Car 
Dealership on Brannen St. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve 
Resolution 2013-09.  Resolution accepting rights of way of one (1) street as public street to be 
owned and maintained by the City of Statesboro.  The street to be considered for acceptance is 
Vaden Dr. located beside the new Nissan Car Dealership on Brannen St. Councilman Britt, 
Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 
vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to adopt Resolution 2013-10: A Resolution accepting right of 
way of one (1) street as a public street to be owned and maintained by the City of 
Statesboro.  The street to be considered for acceptance is a .056 mi. long segment of street, 
yet to be named, located behind the new Nissan dealership located on Brannen Street. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to adopt Resolution 
2013-10. A Resolution accepting right of way of one (1) street as a public street to be owned and 
maintained by the City of Statesboro.  The street to be considered for acceptance is a .056 mi. 
long segment of street, yet to be named, located behind the new Nissan dealership located on 
Brannen Street. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
   
Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to Tyson Utilities Construction, Inc. in the 
amount of $34,838.92 for a sewer line extension, which will eliminate the need for the 
Sandy Hill Pump Station 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to award a contract to Tyson 
Utilities Construction, Inc. in the amount of $34,838.92 for a sewer line extension, which will 
eliminate the need for the Sandy Hill Pump Station. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve Award of Contract to Y-Delta Inc. in the amount of 
$625,451.93 to make intersection and water main improvements at the W. Main St./ S. 
College St. intersection.  Award requires increasing the overall project budget to $674,000 
to cover costs associated with USPO easement acquisition, utility relocations, and higher 
than anticipated costs of intersection improvements due to city initiated road closure 
restrictions.  The Requested budget increase to be covered by savings from cost under runs 
on other recent capital improvements. Improvements to be funded by 2007 SPLOST.  
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve the 
award of contract to Y-Delta Inc. in the amount of $625,451.93 to make intersection and water 
main improvements at the W. Main St./ S. College St. intersection.  Award requires increasing 
the overall project budget to $674,000 to cover costs associated with USPO easement 



 
 

acquisition, utility relocations, and higher than anticipated costs of intersection improvements 
due to city initiated road closure restrictions.  The Requested budget increase to be covered by 
savings from cost under runs on other recent capital improvements. Improvements to be funded 
by 2007 SPLOST. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a motion to award the bid for two (2) new compressed natural gas 
powered refuse cab and chassis units to Peach State Ford Truck Sales for a total amount of 
$286,360.00 for both units.  
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to award the bid for 
two (2) new compressed natural gas powered refuse cab and chassis units to Peach State Ford 
Truck Sales for a total amount of $286,360.00 for both units. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, 
Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a motion to purchase two (2) New Way front load refuse bodies with 
compressed natural gas systems for a total amount of $260,507.10. 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to purchase two (2) New 
Way front load refuse bodies with compressed natural gas systems for a total amount of 
$260,507.10. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. 
The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council: None 
 
Public Comments (General) 

A) Mr. Bill Thomas request to speak with Council on Government Transparency 
 
Mr. Bill Thomas addressed Council with his concerns about honest and open government. He 
asked all students to register to vote. He began speaking to issues that had taken place when 
Shane Haynes was City Manager in South Carolina before coming to Statesboro to fill the 
position as the City Manager. After speaking for more than 5 minutes, Council asked Mr. 
Thomas to conclude his speech. Mr. Thomas asked Council to launch an FBI Investigation 
concerning Mr. Haynes employment with the City of Statesboro.  
  
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to adjourn.  Councilman 
Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-
0 vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
 CALLED CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

April 24, 2013 

A called meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on April 24, 2013 at 9:00 am in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall Present were Mayor Joe R. Brannen, Council Members: Will 
Britt, John Riggs and Gary Lewis.  Also present were City Manager Frank Parker, City Clerk 
Sue Starling, and City Attorney Alvin Leaphart. Councilman Travis Chance, Councilman Phil 
Boyum, City Engineer Robert Cheshire and Director of Community Development Mandi Cody 
were absent.  
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Joe Brannen 
  
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was given by Councilman John Riggs 

 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between Mayor 
and Council of the City of Statesboro and the Board of Regents of the University  System of 
Georgia by and on behalf of Georgia Southern University. 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve the 
Intergovernmental Agreement between Mayor and Council of the City of Statesboro and the 
Board of Regents of the University System of Georgia by and on behalf of Georgia Southern 
University. Councilman Britt, Riggs, and Lewis voted in favor the motion. The motion carried by 
a 3-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from the City Council: None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to adjourn. 
Councilman Britt, Riggs, and Lewis voted in favor the motion. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:06 am. 



CITY OF STATESBORO
P O BOX 348

STATESBORO, GBORGIA 30459
Telephone (912) 764-5468 Fax (912\ 764-4691

APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
30 DAY NOTICE IS REQUIREtr} BEFORE THE EVENT

DArE oF APPLrcArroN C4 | l"T I tZ

DATE OF EVENT

TIME OF EVENT

os ltt l13
5*1 fot

LocArroN oF EVENr BOLII lfowse
rypE oF EVENr (DETATLED DESRrprroN y &u Ldu", ()*th *

d) llni'rt"tsih { kenqn* e4wt ft" i*rr?lr?(,.

IF THIS IS A THBATRE PRODUCTION. PROVDIE A DESCRIPTION.

PRODUCTS TO BE SERVED: /u,"* /*,*u LIQUOR

** ALCOHOL MUST BE PURCHASED THROUGH A LICENSED
WHOLESALEDISTRIBUTOR. .) ', /1

NAME OF WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTOR N A,T I'|)NA!{

S AND PHONE N
/.a-it fL4T-h

es . l*;rnt CMe.t.;n

DISTRIBUTOR
t?

**THE APPLICANT IS NOT ALLOWED TO HAVE A CASH BAR AT THE
EVENT.

WILL THERE BE FOOD SERVED? IF SO WHO WILL BE CATERING?



WILL THERE BE MUSIC AND DANCING? IT'SO DESCRIBED
.lnJn,"U

IF RAISING MONEY FOR A CHARITY. WHAT IS THE NAME OF THE
ORGANIZATION

PROVIDB A NAME AND PHONE NUMBER OF THE CHARITY
ORGANIZATION CONTACT

IF THE EVBNT IS FOR A CHARITY, PROVIDE A COPY OF THE APPROVED
RECOGNITION OF EXEMPTION UNDER SECTION s01(CX3) OF THE
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.

ARE FLYERS BEING DISTRIBUTED?
IF YES ATTACH TO APPLICATION.

NAME oF AppLrcANr kttqcc

r'No

Appl,rcANrs pHoNB NUMBER t78 , Zgt , tcgs
APPLICANT IS REQUIRED TO ATTEND THE COUNCIL MEETING.

I HAYE READ AND AGRPE TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS PERMIT.A--- a) /,
\4ntYnu 5-4'{-rns

Jarn, t}Jnls

Ttrn Vrtsts,rle Rd*, STafeslroua, ffi 3o458
APPLICANT'S ADDRESS

RE OF APPL

ktfiace fr,t C

OFFICE USE:
DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

DATE APPROVED BY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL



crrY oF STATESBORO, GEORGTA

APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOLIC BBYERAGE LICENSE

DArE oFAPPLrcArroN Lfl tqltg
TYPPOF BUSINESS TO BE OPERATED:
_V RETATL BEER & wtNE PAcKAGED oNLY

RETAIL BEER & WINE BY THE DRINK
BEER, WINB & LIQUOR BY DRINK
WHOLESALE LICENSE
APPLICATION F'EE - PACKAGED SALES
APPLICATION FEE- POURING SALES

1."

APPLICANTS FULL NAME

OWNERS NAME

DBA (BUSTNESS N

CHECK THE TYPE OF ALCOHOL LICENSE YOU ARE APPLYING FOR: CWSJ'E.qIE.?\C.._ StO"' y'
RESTAURANT SPORTSRESTAURANT PRIVATECLUB 

-PACKAGE-
BUSINESS ADDRESS 3o{sF
BUSINESS MAILING ADDRESS

BUSINESS TEI,EPHONE #

APPLICANTS HOME ADDRESS

APPLICANTS HOME PHONE g

APPLICANTS AGE

ARE YOU A CITIZEN OF TITE UNITED STATES? 4""5 
-

HAVE YOUR EVER BEEN ARRESTED FOR ANYTHING?

IF YES, WHEN AND WHY

IS THE APPLICANT THE OWNER OF THE BUSINESS? YES { xo

IF NO. WHAT IS YOUR TITLE IN THE BUSINESS? Loo
I{OW MAI.IY PARTNERS, SHAREHOLDERS, ETC. ARE INVOLVED IN THE BUSINESS I

PLEASE LIST BELOW:

NEW RENEWAL

$1,250.00
$1,250.00
$3r750.00
$1,000.00
$ 150.00
$ rs0.00

Y6j

NO

YES
y'No

Qtz- 7bl- | ool

&raq oc -l {Ir\. 0^ r VL{
J'



APPLICATION

DATE OF'APPLICATION NEW

TYTE OF BUSINBSS TO BE OPERATED:
v RETAIL BEER & wlNE PACKAGED oNLY

RETAIL BEER & WINE BY TITE DRINK
BEER, WINE & LIQUOR BY DRINK
WHOLESALE LICENSE

Z APPLICATION F.EE _ PACKAGED SALES
AP?LICATION FEE * POURING SAI.ES

APPI.ICANTS FULL NAME

OWNERS NAME

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA

F'OR ALCOHOLIC BEYERAGE I,ICENSE

on*"*o" ,/ (

$1,250.00
$1,250.00
$3,750,00
$1,000,00
s 150.00

$ 1s0.00

Chc.rvlrncr \
a{?ittrnr+ L'flle1 ,

DBA (BUsTNESS NAME) Enmf.];YkSI ct:fl ons , lnt .* 8 QQ

CHECK THE TYPE oF ALCOHOL LICENSE YOU ARE APPLYING FORr .. /
RESTAURA,NT-SPORTS RESTd.UEANT-PRIVATE CI,UB-PACKAG E \/

BUSINESS ADDRESS

BUSINESS MAILING ADDRESS

B{JSINESS TELEPHONE #

APPLICANTS HOME ADDRESS

APPLICANTS HOME PHONE #

APPLICANTS AGE

ARE YOU A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED STATES? / VNS

HAVE YOUR EVER BEEN ARRESTED FORANYTHING?

IF YES, WHEN AND WHY

IS THE APPLICANT THE OWNER OF THE BUSINESS? . YES v

rF No, wHAT IS youR rIrLE IN rHE BustNESS? u{ l0Y'0

\402

_NO

YES /*o

HOW MANY PARTNERS, SHAREHOLDERS, ETC. ARE INVOLVED IN TllE TUSUVESSQ

PLEASE LIST BELOW;



RESOLUTION 2013-12: A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE THIRD AMENDMENT 
TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET FOR EACH FUND OF THE CITY OF 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA, APPROPRIATING THE AMOUNTS SHOWN IN EACH 
BUDGET AS EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES, ADOPTING THE SEVERAL ITEMS OF 

REVENUE ANTICIPATIONS, AND PROHIBITING EXPENDITURES OR 
EXPENSES FROM EXCEEDING THE ACTUAL FUNDING APPROPRIATED 

 
 

 THAT WHEREAS, sound governmental operations require a Budget in order to 
plan the financing of services for the residents of the City of Statesboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Title 36, Chapter 81, Article 1 of the Official Code of Georgia 
Annotated (OCGA) requires a balanced Budget for the City's fiscal year, which runs from 
July 1st to June 30th of each year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed a proposed Third 
Amendment to the Budget from the City Manager that includes some revenues/financing 
sources and expenditures/expenses not anticipated in the original Budget, and carries 
forward funding and appropriations for some projects and equipment budgeted in the 
previous fiscal year, but not purchased by fiscal year-end; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of these funds is a balanced budget, so that anticipated revenues 
and other financial resources for each fund equal the proposed expenditures or expenses 
and any transfers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to adopt this Third Budget 
Amendment for Fiscal Year 2013; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the proposed changes to the budget, attached hereto as 
Attachment #1 and incorporated herein as a part of this Resolution, are hereby adopted as 
the Third Budget Amendment for the City's Fiscal Year 2013 Budget. 
 
 Section 2.  That the several items of revenues, other financial resources, and 
sources of cash shown in the budget amendment for each fund in the amounts shown 
anticipated are hereby adopted; and that the several amounts shown in the budget 
amendment for each fund as proposed expenditures or expenses, and uses of cash are 
hereby appropriated to the departments and agencies named in each fund, as amendments 
to the existing Budget previously adopted. 
 
 Section 3.  That the "legal level of control" as defined in OCGA 36-81-2 is set at 
the departmental level, meaning that the City Manager in his capacity as Budget Officer 
is authorized to move appropriations from one line item to another within a department, 
but under no circumstances may expenditures or expenses exceed the amount 



appropriated for a department without a further budget amendment approved by the 
Mayor and City Council. 
 
 Section 4.  That all appropriations shall lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
 Section 5.  That this Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from 
and after its date of adoption. 
 
 Adopted this 7th day of May, 2013. 
 
 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
By:  Joe R. Brannen, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
 



ATTACHMENT #1 
 

FY 2013 THIRD BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

100 General Fund:  
• Increase Revenue for Run the Boro by $7,205. 
• Increase Transfer from Solid Waste Collection by $7,000. 
•  Governing Body 

           Increase Expenditures for Miscellaneous Expense by $10,000. 
• City Clerk 

     Decrease Expenditures for Retirement by $3,000. 
• Elections 

     Increase Expenditures by $2,432. 
• Legal 

     Decrease Expenditures for Legal Fees by $5,000. 
• Information Technology 

     Increase Expenditures for Software Application by $4,000. 
     Increase Expenditures for Network Infrastructure by $3,000. 

• Human Resources 
     Increase Expenditures for Run the Boro by $7,205. 

• Governmental Buildings 
       Increase Expenditures for Building Repairs and Maintenance by $19,000. 

• Engineering 
      Decrease Expenditures for Retirement by $2,500. 

• Statesboro Municipal Court 
     Decrease Expenditures for Retirement by $2,500. 
     Decrease Expenditures for Indigent Fees by $5,000. 
     Decrease Expenditures for Peace Officer’s A&B Fund by $5,000. 
     Decrease Expenditures for Peace Officer’s Pros Training by $6,117. 

• Police Department 
     Decrease Expenditures for Retirement by $2,500. 

• Increase Expenditures for RDC Dues and Fees by $185. 
Net effect on Fund is: None. 
 

210 Confiscated Assets Fund: 
• Increase Expenditures for Small Tools and Equipment by $17,200. 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Fund Balance by $17,200. 
   

221 CDBG Fund: 
• No Changes. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
 

224 US Department of Justice Grant 
• No Changes. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 



 
250 Multiple Grants Fund: 

• Increase in Revenues for GEMA – Homeland Security Grant for Fire by $10,000. 
• Increase in Revenues for GEMA – Homeland Security Grant for Police by 

$10,000. 
• Increase in Revenues for Bullet Proof Vest Program Grant $3,438. 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Fund Balance by $23,438. 
 

270 Statesboro Fire Service Fund: 
• No Changes. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
 

275 Hotel/Motel Fund: 
• Increase Expenditures for Payment to Georgia Southern University by $250,000. 
• Increase Expenditures for Payment to GMA by $5,000. 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Fund Balance by $255,000. 
 

286 Technology Fee Fund: 
• No Changes. 
• Net effect on Fund is:  None. 

 
322 2007 SPLOST Fund: 

• No Changes. 
Net effect on Fund is: None. 
 

323 2013 SPLOST Fund: 
• Increase Expenditures for Fire Equipment by $1,500,000. 

Net effect on Fund is: Decrease in Fund Balance by $1,500,000. 
 

350 Capital Improvements Program Fund: 
• No Changes. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
 

505 Water and Sewer Fund:  
Customer Service Division 

• Increase Expenditures for Regular Employees by $12,000. 
Waste Water Treatment Plant Division 

• No Changes. 
Water and Sewer Division 

• No Changes. 
Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash by $12,000. 
 

506 Reclaimed Water System Fund 
• No Changes. 
• Net effect on Fund is:  None  



 
515 Natural Gas Fund: 

• Increase Revenues for Commercial Natural Gas Charges by $100,000. 
• Increase Revenues for HLF Firm Industrial Charges by $100,000. 
• Increase Expenses Natural Gas Purchased by $200,000. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
  

541 Solid Waste Collection Fund:   
Commercial Division 

• No Changes. 
Residential Division 

• Increase Transfer to General Fund by $7,000.. 
Yardwaste Division 

• No Changes. 
Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash by $7,000. 
 

542 Solid Waste Disposal Fund: 
• No Changes. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
601 Health Insurance Fund: 

• No Changes. 
Net effect on Fund is: None. 
 

602 Fleet Management Fund:  
• No Changes. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
 

603 Workers Compensation Fund:  
• Increase Revenues for Workers Comp Premiums by $51,120. 
• Increase Expenditures for Workers Comp Claims by $51,120. 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
 
 

 

































RESOLUTION 2013-11: A Resolution to accept as a gift the conveyance and dedication of  
  certain real property valued at sixty seven thousand eight hundred dollars ($67,800.00) from 

    the heirs and assigns of Thomas E. Rushing, Sr. 
 

THAT WHEREAS, Section 1-2 of the Charter of the City of Statesboro provides that the 
Mayor and City Council can receive, possess, and retain to themselves and their successors in 
office, for the use and benefit of the City of Statesboro, in perpetuity or for any term of years, 
any estate or estates, real or personal, of every kind and nature, inside or outside the corporate 
limits for corporate purposes; 
 

WHEREAS, the heirs and assigns of Thomas E. Rushing, Sr. desire to convey and 
dedicate as a gift certain real property to the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro;  
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to accept as a gift this conveyance and 
dedication of certain real property from the heirs and assigns of Thomas E. Rushing, Sr.; 

 
WHEREAS, the Bulloch County Board of Tax Assessors values this real property at 

SIXTY SEVEN THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($67,800.00). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 
 

Section 1.  That Mayor and City Council shall accept as a gift the conveyance and 
dedication of certain property more particularly described as follows: 

 
All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being in the 1209th G.M. District, 
Bulloch County, City of Statesboro, Georgia containing 7.27 acres and designated 
as Parcel A, according to a plat of survey by Thomas M. Lewis, Registered Land 
Surveyor, dated October 11, 2005 and recorded in Plat Book 62, Page 780, 
Bulloch County, Georgia records.  Said survey is incorporated herein for all 
purposes of description. 
 
Section 2: The Mayor and City Clerk and hereby authorized to execute appropriate legal 

instruments accepting the conveyance of title to this property to the Mayor and City Council of 
Statesboro. 

  
Section 3.  That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of 

adoption 
                                                                                          Adopted this ___  day of ____, 2013 
 
                                                                                             CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
                                                                                                          _________________________ 

                                                                                                            By: Joe R. Brannen, Mayor                                                                                                                                        
_________________________ 

 Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk               











Exhibit A 

 

Format for Task Order 

 

 

TASK ORDER NO. 1 

 

To the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

For Ecological Planning Group 

 

This Task Order, made and entered into by and between the Mayor and City Council of 

Statesboro, GA hereinafter called the "CITY" and Ecological Planning Group, LLC., hereinafter 

called the "CONSULTANT", shall be incorporated into and become a part of the 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (the "AGREEMENT") entered into by the parties 

hereto on May 7, 2013. 

 

A.  PURPOSE 

 

This Task Order authorizes and directs the CONSULTANT to proceed with assisting the CITY 

in providing services for a Stormwater Management Program (SWMP) Assessment & Funding 

Analysis. 

 

B.  CONSULTANT’S SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The Scope of Services, dated May 7, 2013, is specifically described herein.   

 

The Project Team will work with City Staff to develop the SWMP Assessment & Funding 

Analysis.  In general, the Assessment and Funding Analysis will include the following elements 

and activities in Tasks 1 – 7.  

 

 Drainage System GIS Inventory & Condition Assessment Pilot Study 

 Capital Drainage Improvement Program, Project Identification & Prioritization Matrix 

 Existing SWMP Level of Service (LOS) and Cost of Service (COS) analysis 

 Development of an Extent of Service (EOS) policy  

 SWMP needs assessment 

 Future SWMP LOS and COS analysis 

 Impervious Surface GIS Delineation 

 Future SWMP Funding Analysis 

 Preliminary storm water user fee revenue estimate 

Task 1. Drainage System GIS Inventory and Condition Assessment Pilot Project 

 

The Project Team will perform a GIS inventory and assess the condition of the drainage 

infrastructure within a pilot area identified by the City.  

 

As part of this task, the Project Team will visit each stormwater structure in the field and identify 



its spatial location using a Trimble Geo-XH. The inventory will be a map-grade inventory that 

will identify the geographic location of structures on an x/y coordinate system at sub-meter 

accuracy. While in the field locating the GPS position of each structure, the Project Team will 

also perform a comprehensive condition assessment of every structure.  The assessment will 

include information on Structure Type, Pipe Size, Structure Material, Structure Damage, 

presence of Sediment, Debris, Dry Weather Flows, Water Quality Issues, Erosion, Maintenance 

Need, Inspection Data, Notes and Photographs. 

 

Upon completion of the inventory, the Project Team will review the maintenance and structural 

issues identified and develop an assessment of the overall condition of the system. This will 

include a list of maintenance concerns and other issues identified. The projects will be assigned 

to one of three major categories: 1) operational maintenance issues, such as sediment or debris 

removal, 2) capital maintenance issues, structures that required a more expensive solution, such 

as replacement of a broken manhole cover, and 3) capital improvement issues, major drainage 

issues that require an engineered solution. 

 

The pilot area is shown in the attached map, and includes a representative sample of old and new 

areas of development, as well as commercial and residential land uses, and incorporates 

approximately 20% of the drainage infrastructure within the City. For the purposes of this 

contract, the Project Team assumes that this task will include location of approximately 1,029 

drainage structures. This estimate is based on an assumed density of 0.5 structures per acre 

within the pilot project area delineated in the attached map. Should the actual number of 

structures exceed 1,029, the Project Team will contact the City prior to collecting any structures 

in excess of that amount. Any structures collected in excess of 1,029, will be collected at the per 

structure rate listed below. 

 

Budget: $10/structure (estimated 1,029 structures) $10,290.   
 

Task 2 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Evaluation & Prioritization Analysis 

 

The Project Team will work with the City to identify specific capital projects that would likely 

be addressed by the future SWMP. This will likely include capital projects already identified 

within the City’s SPLOST as well as other projects not previously included in the City’s CIP. 

The Project Team will work with the City to preliminarily assess/review the identified drainage 

capital projects as well as additional unfunded capital maintenance projects. The Project Team 

staff plan to visit the field to assess prospective CIP projects, including those already identified 

by the City.  We assume that three field days will be sufficient to review the various City 

projects.  From the field work, we will develop an objective ranking system to help prioritize the 

projects for implementation under the future comprehensive SWMP. The ranking system would 

include the following criteria as a minimum: public/private property, ease of construction, threat 

to property & public health, structural flooding, construction cost opinion, etc.  The Project Team 

will work the City to rank the identified CIP projects in accordance with the ranking matrix and 

will produce a GIS database and project map of the project included in the initial CIP. This task 

assumes no detailed engineering design work will be conducted for any identified CIP projects. 
 

Budget: $9,020 (Lump Sum) 

 



Task 3 Development of a SWMP LOS, COS and EOS Analysis 

 

The Project Team will review the City’s existing SWMP including applicable NPDES 

Stormwater Permitting issues; the existing drainage system operation and maintenance (O&M) 

program; the existing Drainage CIP; the erosion & sedimentation control program; the existing 

Watershed Protection Plan (WPP) related to sanitary sewer operations & permits; the historical 

and proposed SWMP funding/budget issues; as well as the City’s development guidelines, 

ordinances and procedures as it relates to stormwater management regulation.   

 

The Project Team will also work with the City to develop a formal EOS policy for the SWMP. 

This policy will outline the City’s operational responsibility for various elements of the drainage 

system and the SWMP overall. 

 

The Project Team will work with the City staff to review the existing SWMP LOS and the 

current SWMP funding level, as well as the existing SWMP funding sources.  Based on our 

assessment of the existing SWMP, we will work with the City staff to establish the future SWMP 

LOS, which will serve as the basis for the future SWMP COS and SWMP funding analysis.  The 

Project Team will work with City staff to evaluate the desired LOS and its associated COS 

against the future customer’s service delivery expectations and their “willingness to pay” prior to 

establishment of the final SWMP LOS and COS.  This work effort will be coordinated with the 

other scope of work elements outlined herein.   

 

The Project Team will examine the organizational, management and operational structure for the 

future SWMP, and provide recommendations regarding the most viable options for the City to 

consider for implementation based on the SWMP LOS, COS and EOS issues being contemplated 

by the City.  

 

Based on the EOS and LOS developed as part of this task, the Project Team will develop an 

estimate of the total cost to provide stormwater services, at the desired LOS, for a five year 

period (FY 2015 – 2020). The final cost projections will be based on policy and program 

decisions made by the City Council and City Staff.  A detailed, five-year cost of service analysis 

will be developed in spreadsheet format to facilitate a “what if” analysis and to allow for 

incorporation into a future SW Utility rate model.  Several trials and alternates will be developed 

to facilitate different user fee decisions within the context of developing an effective, building 

block SWMP and associated funding strategy. 

 

Budget: $5,160 (Lump Sum) 

 

Task 3.A (optional): NPDES Phase II MS4 SWMP Assistance 

 

The Project Team will provide hourly, as-needed assistance to the City regarding development of 

the SWMP document in compliance with the recently reissued NPDES Phase II MS4 Permit. The 

Project Team will only commence work on this task upon request in writing or email from the 

City, should the City be designated a Phase II community by the Georgia EPD.   

 

Budget, $5,000, Additional, hourly, not to exceed 

 



Task 4 Establish Impervious Surface GIS Database.  

 

The Project Team will obtain existing parcel, land use and public utility account data. We 

anticipate that the City and the Coastal Regional Commission (RDC) will provide a bulk of the 

data needs for our use in establishing impervious area data associated with residential and non-

residential parcels. We will perform the required GIS work to establish an impervious area 

database layer (including both totally impervious and partially pervious land cover) for the City 

by using the existing aerials and then updating the impervious area database as needed for recent 

development through the analysis of as-built plans and Google Earth. We assume that the City 

staff will assist with obtaining aerial photography data, and we also assume that the City will 

make site plans available for our use as well.  The format of this data will be in a ArcGIS 

geodatabase indicating up-to-date property owners/utility account holders, location address, and 

other pertinent parcel and impervious area information.  

 

In some instances, it may be necessary to verify and/or alter the location of some property/tax 

parcel lines to facilitate the development of the final MAF.  It is assumed that the rectification 

work will be limited to those parcels where the ownership of the impervious surface is in 

question. We assume that the verification will be desk top in nature and will not involve field 

survey work.  We also assume that the City staff will assist us in obtaining the necessary 

property parcel files from the City and County.   

 

The Project Team assumes that all Non-Single Family Residential (NSFR) developed parcels 

will be delineated and that a 20% representative sample of the single-family residential (SFR) 

parcels will be delineated. Based on the City’s current utility account database, the Project Team 

assumes that the amount of delineations to be performed is 1,818 residential or SFR customers, 

and 1,852 non-residential or NSFR customers, for a total of 3,670 delineations. 

 Based on the impervious area data developed, we will prepare a preliminary revenue projection 

for the future Stormwater Utility (SW Utility) and user fee charge. This information will be 

utilized as we finalize the future SWMP Cost of Service analysis from Task 3.   

 

Budget: $37,135 (Hourly, Not-To-Exceed) 

 

Task 5: Funding Analysis 

 

The Project Team will evaluate the potential of utilizing a SW Utility to fund the future SWMP 

and will provide the following information/analysis: (1) an overview of SW Utilities and (2) an 

opinion as to the applicability (both legally and operationally) of utilizing a SW Utility to fund 

the future SWMP.   
 

SW Utility Rate Structure Analysis: The Project Team will review the various issues related to 

the potential SW Utility rate structure and rate methodology options and select the option(s) that 

best meets the City’s needs.  Most Georgia SW Utilities have utilized the impervious area rate 

methodology as a basis for their rate structure and user fee charges. This rate methodology has 

been upheld by the Georgia Supreme Court’s ruling in 2004 for the Columbia County SW Utility 

and again for the Athens-Clarke County SW Utility in 2013.  As such, we assume that the City 



will strongly consider this approach as well.  In order to complete this task, we will perform the 

following activities:  

 Evaluate basic rate methodologies and make recommendations based on the most fair and 

equitable manner in which to apportion SWMP costs to the customer base; 

 Evaluate modifying factors, such as residential flat rates, residential tiers, water quality 

factor, credits, secondary funding methods, etc. to simplify the customer account 

database information while at the same time ensuring equity; 

 Develop a recommended SW Utility rate structure that is fair and equitable to the SW 

Utility customers, and that will address the City’s SWMP needs and priorities.  

SW Utility Rate Study: The SW Utility Rate Study will apply the future SWMP COS 

information as established in Task 3 to the rate methodology and rate structure recommendations 

for various classes of ratepayers. The primary purpose of the rate study will be to establish the 

billing rate for the SW Utility based on the projected SWMP LOS and COS for the 

parcels/customers and the total number of billing units in the MAF.  The rate study exercise will 

be an iterative process whereby the SWMP COS and the corresponding billing rates will be 

balanced with each other until both an adequate funding level and acceptable user fee rate is 

established. The work effort will include the following activities: 

 Develop a SWMP cost, billing rate and cash flow analysis spreadsheet; 

 Identify and segregate costs which will be borne by the SW Utility and those borne by 

other secondary funding sources (i.e. SPLOST, plan review fees, etc.); 

 Translate the SWMP COS into a five-year cash flow analysis for the SW Utility; 

 Perform “what if” analysis until an acceptable and sufficient user fee billing rate is 

established to fund the future SWMP COS at the desired LOS; 

 Develop a final SWMP revenue estimate; 

 Convert the SW Utility financial data into the desired City budget format.  

 

Budget: $5,910 (Lump Sum) 

Task 6: Public Education and Outreach Plan 

 

The Project Team will develop Public Education and Outreach Plan to outline our proposed 

methods to educate and involve the key stakeholders and future SW Utility Customers. The 

objective of the education program will be to inform customers of what the local SWMP needs 

and priorities are and why the implementation of a SW Utility will enable the community to 

address these issues in a more comprehensive, pro-active and thorough manner. The Plan will 

likely include the following   

 Create mission statement;  

 Identify key stakeholders;  

 Research the most effective tools to distribute information including local media, cable 

TV, pamphlets, utility bill stuffers, brochures, public meetings, presentations, etc; and 

 Develop a Public Education and Outreach Plan (the Plan) to summarize the proposed 

activities that will be implemented and to guide the overall process. 

 

Budget: $540 (Lump Sum) 



Task 7: Project Management  

 

The Project Team will attend coordination meetings at the request of City staff. For the purposes 

of this task, we assume that this will include up to 4 meetings over the course of Phase 1. Per the 

proposal, our Project Manager, Courtney Reich, will be available to the City staff for an 

unlimited number of meetings/conference calls, as needed.  

 

The Project Team plans to hold a full day meeting at the City of Statesboro whereby Project 

Team staff will visit each department involved in implementation of the SWMP. We expect that 

this day will begin with a general meeting followed by interviews with individual City 

department staff and personnel.  The Project Team will provide the City with a list of requested 

information and an Agenda prior to the meeting. As needed, the Project Team will follow up 

with phone interviews with City personnel as the program assessment continues.   

 

Upon completion of the Phase 1, the Project Team will present the findings to the City staff 

and/or the City Council. 

 

Budget: $6,120 (Hourly, Not-To-Exceed) 

 

TOF 1 Schedule: The Scope of this TOF will be implemented in accordance with the schedule 

below: 

 

Project Task Time Period/Date 

TOF 1:  STORMWATER PROGRAM ASSESSMENT & FUNDING ANALYSIS  

Kick Off Meeting/Start Up Workshop with Staff May 2013 

Task 1: Drainage System GIS Inventory and Condition Assessment  May – Jul 2013 

Task 2. CIP Evaluation & Prioritization Analysis May – Jul 2013 

Task 3. Development of a SWMP LOS, COS, and EOS Analysis May – Aug 2013 

Task 3A. NPDES Compliance Preparation As needed 

Task 4. Impervious Surface GIS Database Aug - Oct 2013 

Task 5. Funding Analysis Data Development/Impervious Surface GIS Database Nov  – Dec 2013 

Task 6. Public Education and Outreach Plan Dec 2013 

Task 7. Project Management May – Dec 2013 

City Council Presentation #1 SWMP Needs & Funding Options Dec 2013 or Jan 2014 

 

TOF 1 Deliverables: 

 GIS database, Condition Assessment, and Project Map of the Drainage System Inventory 

and Condition Assessment Pilot Project 

 Capital Project Prioritization Matrix, Project Map, and GIS Database 

 SWMP Assessment & Funding Analysis Technical Memorandum 



o Summary of Drainage System Condition Assessment 

o Summary of CIP 

o SWMP EOS, LOS and COS 

o Operations and Management Structure Recommendations for the future SWMP 

o SWMP Funding Analysis 

 Rate Methodology & Rate Model Recommendations 

 Stormwater User Fee Revenue Projection 

 Public Education & Outreach Plan 

 Four Project Team coordination meetings 

 Day-Long Meeting Workshop with City Staff Interviews 

 Presentation to the City Council (Program Assessment & Funding Analysis) 

 

C.  CONSULTANT’S COMPENSATION 

 

As consideration for providing the services enumerated within Item B (above) of this Task 

Order, the CITY shall pay the CONSULTANT in accordance with the AGREEMENT.  The 

specific method of compensation for this Task Order is $74,125 as broken down below and as 

enumerated in the Exhibit B of the AGREEMENT.  

 

Task 1:  $10/structure (estimated 1,029 structures) $10,290.   

Task 2:  $9,020 (Lump Sum) 

Task 3:   $5,160 (Lump Sum) 

Task 4:  $37,135 (Hourly, Not-To-Exceed) 

Task 5:  $5,910 (Lump Sum) 

Task 6:  $540 (Lump Sum) 

Task 7:  $6,120 (Hourly, Not-To-Exceed) 

 

Task 3A:  This task will be implemented, if needed, on an hourly, basis for an additional,  

  not-to-exceed budget of $5,000, only upon the specific authorization of the City  

  staff. 

 

 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Task Order on this, the ____ 

day of _____________, 201_. 

 

 

City of Statesboro, GA 

 

 

 By: _______________________________ 

  Signature 

 

  Joe R. Brannen, Mayor 

   

  

 

Ecological Planning Group, LLC. 

 

 

 By: _______________________________ 

  Signature 

  

             Courtney Reich, President 

 


































































































































	01-05-07-2013 Council Agenda
	02-2013 Police Memorial Proclamation
	04-12-2013 council budget retreat minutes
	04-16-2013 council minutes
	04-24-2013 called council minutes
	05-2013 special event
	06-2013 Amy Mae alcohol license
	07-2013 Robert Houston alcohol
	08-2013-12 Resolution on Budget Amendment3
	09-2013 Lease support agreement
	10-2013-RESOLUTION 2013-11 Rushing property
	11-2013 BOE intergov  agreement for sidewalk
	12-2013-Task Order No  1
	13-2013 Fire Station agreement
	14-2013-watershed plan

